
 

 

Village of Egg Harbor 

Utility Committee Meeting Minutes 

September 17
th

, 2019 at 11:00 a.m. 

Donald & Carol Kress Pavilion – Business Center  

7845 Church Street, Egg Harbor, WI 54209 
 

1. Call to order and approval of the agenda  

Heise called the meeting to order at 11:05 a.m.  Those in attendance were Mack Bonk, TC 

Johnson, Bert Sawyer, Ryan Heise, Megan Vandermause, and John Heller via FaceTime.  

Absent were Tom Strong and Tom Prohl.  Also in attendance from McMahon Engineering 

was Tom Kispert.  In attendance in the audience were Angela Lensch and David Pollman.  

Johnson moved to approve the agenda, second by Bonk, motion carried.  

 

2. Approve August 20th, 2019 meeting minutes  

Johnson moved to approve the August 20th, 2019 meeting minutes, second by Bonk, motion 

carried.  

 

3. Open Session (Limited to Ten Minutes) 

 Lensch asked if she will have a chance to discuss her REU change and Vandermause 

reviewed the process for the contesting of the REU assignment with Lensch.  

 Lensch will write a letter to get a hearing scheduled with the committee.  

 Vandermause stated that the letter sent to property owners will be made a bit clearer 

for future so that the process is more clearly understood.  

 

4. Introduction of new committee member Mack Bonk 

 Bonk stated that he lives in Egg Harbor and still travels for work, but he has been 

wanting to be involved with the Village for some time. He is happy to be involved 

with the Wastewater Treatment Plant and Utility Committee.  

 Bonk stated that he works with generators relating to waste management.   

 Bonk stated that all of the generators he works with are rebuilt on a five and six year 

cycle.   

 Heller thanked Bonk for joining the committee.  

 

5. Wastewater Treatment Plant Manager report  

 Sawyer stated that for the month of August influent and the haulers were up.  

 The haulers were up roughly 400,000 gallons.  

 The plant is well below the limits for the effluent running out to the lake.  

 Heller stated that the Village is up about 17.2% in regard to hauler waste.  

 Last year revenue was up over what was included in the budget for 2018.  

 Heise asked what the increase is attributed to and Sawyer stated that the businesses in 

the county are busier this year so that brings up the numbers and there were some 

infiltration issues that were worked out.  

 

6. Commercial REU evaluation – restaurants indoor and outdoor seating count for 

discussion at the next meeting  



 

 

 Sawyer stated that the last time the counting of seats was done was when McMahon 

did their REU study in 2012.  

 Sawyer stated that during the committee’s discussion on whether or not to include 

outdoor seating in the REU calculations he requested that all of the outdoor and 

indoor seating be counted so everything has been updated at the same time.  

 Bonk asked how long the REU system has been in place and Kispert stated that the 

Egg Harbor Wastewater Treatment plant has always used REUs for the calculations 

of usage because the Village does not have a water meter system.    

 Heise asked if all of the businesses are aware that the outdoor seating is being 

discussed.   

 Sawyer stated that at the last meeting when Tom Strong and Tom Prohl counted the 

outdoor seating they recommended that because the businesses only use the outdoor 

seating for three months out of the year every four outdoor seats counted should be 

counted as one indoor seat.   

 Sawyer stated that the sewer bill would stay the same throughout the year.  

 Heller stated that this will be a major topic of discussion for the October meeting.  

 Heise stated that he would recommend that the businesses be notified that this 

discussion is taking place.  

 Bonk asked if there is something on the website that would give him information on 

how the REUs are calculated.   

 Sawyer stated that each type of business has a different formula for their REU 

calculation.  

 Bonk asked how long these formulas have been around, and Kispert stated that the 

formulas have been in existence from the being of the wastewater treatment plant.  

 Heise stated that maybe Bonk and Strong could meet to go over the REU discussions 

that have been had recently.   

 Johnson asked what the situation is with Alpine and their billing, and Heller stated 

that the Alpine has been current in their payments besides the first quarter and are 

hoping for relief on the penalty from the first quarter which the committee will need 

to discuss at the next meeting.  

 

7. 4633 Market Street REU assignment  

 Sawyer stated that when One Barrel Brewing opened, their REU recalculation was 

not determined because the committee was discussing changing the way the REUs 

are calculated in regard to outdoor seating.  

 Sawyer stated that because the discussion has been going on for some time, his 

recommendation would be to update One Barrel Brewing’s REU calculation now and 

then it could be changed again if there is a change to include outdoor seating.   

 Sawyer reviewed the REU calculation for One Barrel Brewing identified as a 

restaurant or as a bar with food.   

 Sawyer stated that only indoor seats are included in the calculation.   

 Heise stated that one thing that this business has that differentiates them as a bar with 

food versus a restaurant is that the business doesn’t have a kitchen similar to a regular 

restaurant.   

 Sawyer stated that he doesn’t have a strong recommendation one way or the other and 

that the committee will need to decide which calculation to go with.  



 

 

 Heller stated that this business is a major food provider but they do not have flat ware 

or plates.    

 Heller would recommend that the business be considered a restaurant.   

 Heller stated that he thinks that the only bar in the Village that is more like a bar 

versus a restaurant is the Alpine golf course clubhouse.   

 Heller stated that he believes Tom Strong recommends that the business be calculated 

as a restaurant.  

 

Johnson moved to charge One Barrel Brewing Company as a restaurant with 6.74 REUs, 

second by Bonk, motion carried.   

 

8. McMahon proposal for professional engineering services for Wastewater Treatment 

Facilities Phase I improvements  

 Sawyer stated that he emailed Kispert to change the headworks and UV system from 

1,000 gallons a minute to something bigger.   

 Sawyer stated that with pumps being increased to more gallons per minute there will 

not be enough capacity if this remains at 1,000 gallons per minute.   

 Johnson asked if increasing this will increase the price and Kispert stated that this 

will not increase the price it is just a number that the designs will be drafted after.   

 Bonk stated that if the pump capacity is increased and the pump is ran on a VFD if 

this effects the life of the motor on the pump and Kispert stated that this will not 

affect the life of the pump.   

 Kispert stated that the motors are now more advanced.   

 Bonk stated that he is asking because when things are specked you need to think 

about the longevity of these items.  

 Kispert explained the way these items will be looked at when they are designed.  

 Items not included in the scope of services included controls and SCADA system 

installation and programming, and Sawyer asked if these systems will still be 

included in the operations of the WWTP.   

 Kispert stated that this means that McMahon will not actually be doing any of the 

physical programming because these items will be completed by the contractor.   

 Heller stated that under the statement of understanding there is reference to upgrades 

to the computer systems and asked if there are monies included in the 2020 budget 

for updating the computer system.  

 Sawyer stated that the money included in the 2020 budget is money included for the 

general computer system not the SCADA system computer system.   

 Heller asked if these computer upgrades can be included in the construction budget 

and Kispert stated that they will be included in the overall project budget.  

 Heller asked about the architectural design for the new buildings and asked if 

McMahon will be completing the design.  

 Kispert stated that everything included in the scope of services will be done by 

McMahon staff.  

 Heller asked that for equipment purchases will the contractor purchase or will the 

Village purchase the equipment. Kispert explained that how the scope is set up right 

now, the contractor will be including all of the equipment in the contract bid.   

 There is another option for the Village to bid each piece of equipment separately and 

turn the equipment over to the contractor once it is purchased.  



 

 

 Kispert stated that McMahon will put together all of the equipment specifications for 

the contractor and any equipment the contractor choses to purchase will need to meet 

the specifications as outlined by McMahon.  

 There are not a lot of equipment purchases.  The equipment that will need to be 

purchased includes the UV system, grit screening unit, grit removal unit, and 

generator.  

 The Village could use an evaluation form that allows the Village to evaluate the 

equipment submitted during bid because the value is not necessarily just based on the 

initial price.  

 If the Village would do it this way, there would be extra steps and extra time so the 

cost of the project would increase a bit.  

 Heller stated that he would defer to Kispert and Sawyer on what is the best process to 

follow regarding the equipment purchases.  

 Heise asked if the Village would be allowed to specify certain makes and models of 

equipment.  

 Kispert stated that this can be done.  There could be a base bid for a specific brand or 

equals could be an alternate bid.  

 Kispert stated that if the equipment is not going to be bid individually there should be 

a base bid with an equal to alternate bids.   

 Bonk asked if the contractor is allowed to select the piece of equipment because it 

meets the spec and that piece of equipment fails then what happens.  

 Kispert stated that if the equipment fails there would be a warranty with the 

contractor that would be relied on.  

 Johnson asked what the next steps are with the project.  

 Kispert stated that first the Village needs a contract with McMahon engineering 

which will go before the Village Board at their next meeting.  The WI DNR needs to 

sign off on the facilities plan which the DNR has indicated they should have done by 

the end of September. Once the approval letter is received from the WI DNR then 

McMahon will reach out with a firmer project schedule.  

 According to the schedule as proposed the plan would be to get the project ready in 

the spring and take advantage of the construction season next year.  

 Johnson asked if on the loan if the loan will be taken in two phases.  

 Kispert stated that the project will be complete in two phases, the first being the work 

on the WWTP property and the second would be the work at the main lift station 

facility.   

 Heise stated that interim financing will be needed until the Clean Water Fund loan 

can be utilized.  

 The state trust fund loan could be utilized until the clean water fund loan becomes 

available.  

 Heller stated that the financial advisors will be able to give the committee a good 

direction on what should be done regarding financing.  

 

Heller moved to recommend that the Village accept McMahon’s proposal contingent on the WI 

DNR approval of the WWTP Facilities Plan, second by Johnson, motion carried.  

 

9. Advice from Village auditor  

 This document was not received by the Village auditor in time for the meeting.   



 

 

 

10. Presentation of draft FY 2020 Utility Fund budget and account detail forms  

 The committee reviewed the account detail forms included in the agenda packet as 

well as the draft utility fund budget spreadsheet.  

 Heise stated that regarding rates staff would recommend a 1% increase so that there is 

a small incremental increase versus a larger increase in three or five years.   

 Heller stated that he thinks that the hauler rates should be increased 2% and rates 

should be raised 1%.   

 

Johnson moved to raise all the sewer rates including residential, commercial, and haulers, by 

1%, second by Heller,  

 

 Heller thought that perhaps the haulers could have been increased by 2%, but he is okay with 

1%.   

 Heller thought about raising the residential by 2% but he is okay with waiting a year.   

 

The committee voted, motion carried.  

 

Bonk moved to approve the FY 2020 Utility Fund budget as presented with approved rate 

increase, second by Johnson, motion carried.  

 

11. Next Meeting Time and Date  

The next meeting is Tuesday, October 15th, 2019 at 11:00 a.m.  
 

12. Adjourn  

Johnson moved to adjourn at 12:14 p.m., second by Bonk, motion carried.  

 

  


